
City of Keene
New Hampshire

KEENE CITY COUNCIL
Council Chambers, Keene City Hall 

June 7, 2018
7:00 PM

 
Roll Call
Pledge of Allegiance

MINUTES FROM PRECEDING MEETING

• 05/17/2018 Site Visit Minutes

• 05/17/2018 Council Minutes

A. HEARINGS / PRESENTATIONS / PROCLAMATIONS

1. Presentation - Community Development - The New 4th Floor

B. ELECTIONS / NOMINATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / CONFIRMATIONS

1. Confirmation
Airport Development and Marketing Committee

2. Nominations
Ashuelot River Park Advisory Board
Airport Development and Marketing Committee

C. COMMUNICATIONS

1. Darryl Masterson - Resignation - College City Commission

2. Rod Thompson - Resignation - Airport Development and Marketing Committee

3. Carolyn Sweet/Machina Arts - Use of City Property - First Friday Events

4. Kevin Dremel - Use of City Property - Keene Music Festival

5. Peggy Schauffler/Country Life - Use of City Property - Sandwich Board Sign

6. Anthony & Fanella Levick/Granite Roots Brewing - Request to Sell Beer at Farmer's Market

7. Councilor Terry Clark - Proposed Amendment to Operating Budget - Sustainability Manager

8. Councilor George Hansel - Proposed Amendment to Operating Budget - Economic
Development Coordinator

9. Councilor Randy Filiault - Proposed Amendment to Operating Budget - Hundred Nights Shelter

D. REPORTS - COUNCIL COMMITTEES

1. Skate Park Location-Parks, Recreation and Facilities Director

2. Department Presentation-Water Meters Leak Detection



3. Report Out – Discussion Regarding a Proposed Ordinance for Disorderly Residences

4. Report Out - Reconstruction of the City Roadways and the Addition of Sidewalk Construction
to Reconstruction Projects

5. Acceptance of Donations to Library Renovation Project

6. Thomas Transportation Parking Space Lease - Airport

E. REPORTS - CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENTS

1. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS

F. REPORTS - BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

G. REPORTS - MORE TIME

1. Options for Main Street Crosswalks and Lighting Changes and Relating to the Acceptance of
LED Street Light Program Rebate and Use of Funds for Downtown Crosswalk and Lighting
Repairs and Improvements (Resolution R-2018-19)

H. ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING

1. Relating to Administrative Departments
Ordinance O-2018-09

I. ORDINANCES FOR SECOND READING

1. Relating to Class Allocation and Salary Schedule
Ordinance O-2018-08-A

J. RESOLUTIONS

1. Relating to the Absolute Discontinuance of a Public Way Known as Wells Street Parking Lot
and For the Return of Layout of a Public Right-of-Way Known as Wells Street
Resolution R-2018-12
Resolution R-2018-13

2. Relating to an Appropriation for Lower Main Street Crosswalk Improvement Project
Resolution R-2018-18

3. Relating to the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Operating Budget
Resolution R-2018-17-A

4. Relating to the Appropriation of Funds for the Goose Pond Dam Improvement Projects;
Relating to the Appropriation of Funds for the Winchester Street By-Pass Project; Relating to
the Appropriation of Funds for the Consolidated Infrastructure Project; Relating to the
Appropriation of Funds for the Martell Court Headworks Replacement Project
Resolution R-2018-08
Resolution R-2018-09
Resolution R-2018-10
Resolution R-2018-11

Non Public Session
Adjournment



































City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 7, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Mayor Kendall W. Lane

ITEM: B.1.

SUBJECT: Confirmation

COUNCIL ACTION:
In City Council May 17, 2018.
Tabled until the next regular meeting of the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION:
I hereby nominate the following individual to serve on the designated board or commission:
 
Airport Development and Marketing Committee
 
Brian W. Johnson - slot 2               Term to expire Dec. 31, 2020
32 Christian Hill Rd
Swanzey NH, 03446
 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Background - Johnson



Brian W. Johnson 

32 Christian Hill Rd 

Swanzey NH, 03446 

Cell 860-729-0319 

Home 603-357-0659 

 

Highly trained aviation professional, A&P, IA 

 

 4/2018 to Present  

Director of Aviation, C&S Wholesale Grocers  

Overseeing Pilots, maintenance, line service and flight scheduling departments for part 91 operation’s 

Managing the maintenance of a 2 to 3 ohnsoaircraft part 91 flight department flying 1100 to 1600 hours per year 

All aspects of aircraft maintenance tracking, planning, budgeting and training 

FAA liaison 

Inventory control and parts purchasing 

Gained ISBAO level 2 certification for flight department, SMS  

Overseeing all aspects of hanger and grounds, Fuel farm and fuel farm QC 

Fuel purchasing for in house fuel farm 

Technical side of Aircraft Sales and Acquisitions for flight department 

Team lead for intergraded materials management plan (storm water runoff monitoring and reporting EPA) 

Responsible for all aspects of flight department in the absence of the Director/VP of Aviation 

 2006 to 3/2018  

Sr. Aviation Maintenance Manager, C&S Wholesale Grocers  

Managing the maintenance of a 2 to 3 aircraft part 91 flight department flying 1100 to 1600 hrs per year 

All aspects of aircraft maintenance tracking, planning, budgeting and training 

FAA liaison 

Inventory control and parts purchasing 

Gained ISBAO level 2 certification for maintenance department 

Overseeing all aspects of hanger and grounds, Fuel farm and fuel farm QC 

Fuel purchasing for in house fuel farm 

 

 



 2001 to 2006  

Gulfstream Aerospace Westfield Mass,  

Sr. Airworthiness inspector 

Inspecting multiple product lines insuring all maintenance, repairs and modifications where accomplished  

In accordance with manufacture’s specifications, TCDS, STC’s and within regulatory requirements   

 

 1995 to 2001: Gulfstream Aerospace, General Dynamics Aviation services, KC Aviation. Westfield Mass. 

Lead Challenger technician CL 600.601.604, overseeing up to 20 personnel on 2 shifts, Accomplishing heavy 

maintenance checks and various installs and large projects on Challenger aircraft.  

 

Worked heavy maintenance checks on the following airframe’s 

Challenger 600, 601,604 

Falcon 20, 50, 2000, 900  

Hawker 125 series 400, 600, 700, 800,XP 850XP & 900XP,  

Gulfstream GII, III, IV 

Gulfstream G100, 200 Lear 31, Westwind.  

Beechjet 400A  

 

Engine experience  

GE CF34   

Honeywell TFE731 & HTE7000  

Prat &Whitney 308  

 

Education: 

North American Institute of Aviation  

Conway, SC received the distinguished graduate award.  

 

Aircraft that I have received certified training on: 

Falcon 2000LX 

Challenger 300,600,601,604 

Hawker 700,800,850XP,900XP 

Gulfstream G100, G200 

Beechjet 400A 

 



Additional Training: 

NBAA leadership course 

AIMM Aviation interpersonal maintenance management, conflict resolution  

FAA ruby award for training, received multiple years  

FAA human factors training 

Part 65 training 

Certified Hazmat training 

OSHA training 

EPA storm water run off prevention  

Fall protection training 

PPE training 

CPR certified  

AED certified  

Blood borne pathogens training  

 



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 22, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Mayor Kendall W. Lane

ITEM: B.2.

SUBJECT:Nominations

RECOMMENDATION:
I hereby nominate the following individuals to the designated Board or Commission:
 
Ashuelot River Park Advisory Board
Paul Boenko  slot 6                    Term to expire Dec. 31, 2020
 
Airport Development and Marketing Committee
Richard Blood  slot 3                  Term to expire Dec. 31, 2020
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Background - Boenko

Background - Blood



 
 
 
 
 
 

40 Avon Street, Keene, NH 03431-3516 | 603-357-3122 | www.antiochne.edu 

LOS ANGELES           MIDWEST           NEW ENGLAND           SANTA BARBARA           SEATTLE 

 
 

May 12, 2018 
Mayor Kendall W. Lane 
3 Washington St. 
Keene, NH  03431 
 
Dear Mayor Lane, 
 
I am pleased to submit this letter of request to be appointed to the Ashuelot River Park Advisory 
Board. For several months, I have been in conversation with George Foskett regarding this 
prospect. We both believe that my role as a faculty member at Antioch University New England 
(AUNE) and my history in Keene regarding engaging public school students in city park 
activities will be assets to the board. 
 
I have been affiliated with AUNE since 1993 when I began as a student in the Environmental 
Studies Department. Since that time, I have held numerous positions at AUNE: Adjunct Faculty, 
Project Director, and now Teaching Faculty in the Education Department. I was the director of 
the Rachel Marshall Outdoor Learning Lab (RMOLL) from 1997-2003. RMOLL’s purpose was 
to engage teachers and students in real-life science problem solving with support from school 
district, city, and university partners. The opportunity for that type of activity in collaboration 
with AUNE still exists. I also see many opportunities to operationalize AUNE resources and 
graduate student energy to help the park achieve desired goals. 
 
A complimentary role that I play for AUNE and the Keene community is Project Manager of the 
Horatio Colony Nature Preserve. The Colony Memorial Trust, owner of the Horatio Colony 
House Museum and Nature Preserve, has contracted with AUNE since 1987 to manage 
education, public program, and site maintenance activities at the preserve. 
 
More important than these considerations, if appointed, I will participate as an active member of 
the board to achieve the mission of the park regardless of AUNE’s connection. I am more than 
happy to answer questions and or provide further information. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Paul Bocko, Teaching Faculty 
AUNE Department of Education 





External Communication
Transmittal Form

June 4, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM:

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.1.

SUBJECT:Darryl Masterson - Resignation - College City Commission

RECOMMENDATION:
Darryl Masterson is resigning his membership on the College City Commission.  Mr. Masterson has been a
member of the Commission since March 3, 2017.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Communication - Masterson





External Communication
Transmittal Form

June 5, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Rod Thompson

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.2.

SUBJECT:Rod Thompson - Resignation - Airport Development and Marketing Committee

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Communication - Thompson

BACKGROUND:
Mr. Thomspon has submitted his resignation from the Airport Development and Marketing Committee.  Mr.
Thompson was previously a member of the Airport Advisory Commission.





External Communication
Transmittal Form

May 29, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Carolyn Sweet

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.3.

SUBJECT:Carolyn Sweet/Machina Arts - Use of City Property - First Friday Events

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Communication - Machina Arts

BACKGROUND:
Carolyn Sweet of Machina Arts is requesting permission for the use of City property on Railroad Square for a
series of First Friday events that would include art exhibits, vendors, live performances and activities.





External Communication
Transmittal Form

May 29, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Kevin Dremel

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.4.

SUBJECT:Kevin Dremel - Use of City Property - Keene Music Festival

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Communication - Keene Music Fest

BACKGROUND:
Kevin Dremel is requesting the annual license to hold the Keene Music Festival on September 1, 2018. This is a
designated Community Event.







External Communication
Transmittal Form

May 30, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Peggy Schauffler

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.5.

SUBJECT:Peggy Schauffler/Country Life - Use of City Property - Sandwich Board Sign

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Communication - Country Life

BACKGROUND:
The owner of Country Life Vegetarian Restaurant is requesting permission for the placement of a portable
sandwich board sign on City property located at the corner of Roxbury Street and Main Street for wayfaring
purposes.







10/31/2017 Gmail - Country Life Restaurant request about a sidewalk sign 

M Gmail david weisberg  

Country Life Restaurant request about a sidewalk sign 

Jane Osgood 
To: david weisberg 
Cc: 

We approve the sign. 

Jane 

Jane E. Osgood 
State and Main Associates 
PO Box 27 
85 Main Street 
Windsor, Vermont 05089 
(o) 802-674-5768
(c) 802-230-8386

Sent from my iPad 

[Quoted text hidden] 

<street-sign-example.jpg> 

<sign-24x36-sidewalk-country-life-restaurant.pdf> 

Wed, Oct 25, 2017 at 10:09 AM 

https://mail .google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=c9abc167b5&jsver=19n8NvMEael. en.&view=pt&msg= 15f53de6281 c4783&q=sidewalk%20sign&qs=true&se... 1 /1 





External Communication
Transmittal Form

June 4, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Anthony & Fanella Levick - Granite Roots Brewing

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.6.

SUBJECT:Anthony & Fanella Levick/Granite Roots Brewing - Request to Sell Beer at Farmer's Market

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Communication - Levick

BACKGROUND:
Granite Roots Brewing is submitting their annual request to sell beer produced by them at their nano brewery at
the Farmers Market of Keene.  The Liquor Commission requires that the governing body give permission for
this sale every year.





City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

June 1, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Councilor Terry M. Clark

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.7.

SUBJECT:Councilor Terry Clark - Proposed Amendment to Operating Budget - Sustainability Manager

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Communication - Clark

BACKGROUND:
Councilor Clark is submitting notice of his intent to make a motion to amend the Fiscal Year 2019 operating
budget to fund a contract position for a sustainability manager.





City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

June 1, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Councilor George S. Hansel

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.8.

SUBJECT:Councilor George Hansel - Proposed Amendment to Operating Budget - Economic
Development Coordinator

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Communication - Hansel

BACKGROUND:
Councilor Hansel is providing notice of his intent to move to amend the Fiscal Year 2019 operating budget to
fund a $25,000 contribution to a public/private partnership that will hire an economic development coordinator. 





City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

June 4, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Councilor Randy Filiault

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.9.

SUBJECT:Councilor Randy Filiault - Proposed Amendment to Operating Budget - Hundred Nights Shelter

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Communication - Filiault

BACKGROUND:
Councilor Filiault is submitting notice of his intent to make a motion to amend the Fiscal Year 2019 operating
budget to withhold the $20,000 funding allocation to Hundred Nights Shelter until a review of their financials
and statistical information has been conducted by City staff. 





City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 23, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee

ITEM: D.1.

SUBJECT:Skate Park Location-Parks, Recreation and Facilities Director

RECOMMENDATION:
On a vote of 5-0, the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommends that the skate
park remain at its current location on Gilbo Avenue.

BACKGROUND:
Chair Manwaring recognized Andy Bohannon, Director of Parks, Recreation and Facilities. Mr. Bohannon
referred to the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee meeting held April 11, 2018, stating
that the current group is looking to solidify the location of the skate park. He requested that the Committee
recommend the skate park remain at its current location on Gilbo Avenue. 

Mr. Bohannon explained to the Committee that in 2010, an ad-hoc relocation committee was convened to learn
about potential sites around Keene that could better serve as the location. The report listed multiple sites, all of
which may or may not work, but the current location remained. 

In 2014, another group created a concept plan of Wheelock Park and a space was designated for a skate park.
He noted that the fundraising efforts for the project were not achievable and the group moved away. 

Mr. Bohannon stated the current group came to him last year during the CIP process. During this time he
mentioned to the City Council that a new group approached the department looking to move forward with the
project. However, the group was only interested in keeping the skate park at the current site. 

He stated that the current group feels that the skate park is best located in the downtown because it is good for
the economy. Mr. Bohannon reported the group has received one grant from EverSource in the amount of
$2,000. In addition, there are several other grants in the cue. 

Mr. Bohannon reported the group is using Pathways for Keene as their fiscal agent in order to have a nonprofit
status. 

Councilor Sutherland commented it is encouraging that the group has a formal organization that is already
raising money. He asked if Mr. Bohannon was aware if any of the former groups fundraising efforts could be
added into the project. Mr. Bohannon replied that the current group is the only group that has been active with
fundraising. He stated that Kathleen Burke is spearheading the fundraising campaign for the group. Ms. Burke’s
goal is to start building the skate park by next fall. 



Councilor Filiault asked if the department would continue making modifications and repairs to the park until the
next phase. Mr. Bohannon replied they have received three quotes for the pliers and additional materials are on
order. He noted this would ensure the park is much more enjoyable until the next phase. Councilor Filiault asked
if the park would continue to be used by skateboarders and BMX bikes. Mr. Bohannon replied in the
affirmative. 

Mr. Bohannon reported an individual that helped build the original skate park is now involved in the current
project. He noted this individual added a lot to the project in terms of their knowledge and connections to
sponsors. 

Councilor Sutherland stated that he knew of an ice cream truck that goes to the local ball fields and shares a
portion of their profits to local charities. He asked if this truck would be permitted at the skate park. Mr.
Bohannon replied that the group is actively seeking opportunities of this nature. He reported that June 21, 2018
is Go Skateboarding Day and the group is holding a fundraising event at Railroad Square. The group is teaming
up with Local Burger to help host the event. In addition to the food, there will also be an auction and a local DJ
will play music. 

Chair Manwaring welcomed public comment. With no comment, Chair Manwaring asked if there was a motion.

Councilor Sutherland made the following motion, which was seconded by Councilor Filiault. 

On a vote of 5-0, the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommends that the skate
park remain at its current location on Gilbo Avenue. 



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 23, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee

ITEM: D.2.

SUBJECT:Department Presentation-Water Meters Leak Detection

RECOMMENDATION:
On a vote of 5-0, the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommends acceptance of
the Department Presentation on Leak Detection as informational.

BACKGROUND:
Chair Manwaring recognized Rob Chaput and Mike Cox, Water Technicians with the Water Meter Department.
Mr. Cox began the presentation by describing how a water meter works. He explained that water enters a
chamber containing a disc and the water pressure drives the disc to rotate. The disc rotates counter clockwise
as water passes through the meter. As the disc spins the magnet in the disc turns the numbers on the meter head.
Mr. Cox presented a nutating disc to the Committee to demonstrate how water flows through the disc. He
noted that if the magnet breaks the numbers will automatically stop. 

Chair Manwaring asked if the top part of the disc breaks will the water stop flowing. Mr. Cox replied that the
water will continue to flow. 

Mr. Cox stated that it is important to know where water meters are located in homes. He explained that this is
important because the stop tap, which controls the flow of water to the house, is located inside the water meter
box. Mr. Cox noted that water meters are located in cellars, under kitchen sinks, buried in the dirt and even in
walls. 

Mr. Cox then demonstrated how someone would turn off the water in case of an emergency. He presented two
different valve options that a home may have. The first is a ball valve that is designed with a ball inside the valve
that controls the water flow. The second valve presented was a gate valve. The gate valve opens by lifting a
round gate out of the water. Mr. Cox noted that ball valves are more durable, reliable and close more securely
after long periods of use. He noted that a gate valve is a problem waiting to happen and suggested having gate
valves replaced by a plumber. 

Mr. Cox continued explaining that a water meter can also help to detect possible leaks. He stated that a simple
check involves turning off all taps to the water system. Once everything has been turned off, check the meter to
see if any of the numbers are still recording. If the numbers continue to record this is an indication of a leak. Mr.
Cox noted that the number one culprit is the toilet. In addition, he stated that the toilet is the most common
cause for a high water bill. The other causes for high water bills can be cause by dripping faucets, broken pipes
and outdoor spigot left running. 



Mr. Cox reported there is a new device that the City uses to help detect leaks in homes. He reported there is a
new technology called the RV4 that is used to help customers understand their water usage patterns when there
is a high water bill. Mr. Cox explained that the device is attached to the house, free of charge, in order to find
the cause of the leak. The device provides the exact date, time and total water consumption.
Chair Manwaring asked why a water meter would be installed in the ground and what a home owner should do
if the meter is buried in the ground. Mr. Cox stated that the best thing a home owner could do is to hire a
plumber to get the meter out of the ground. He also explained that a lot of the older homes buried the water
meters in the ground due to cost. 

Chair Manwaring welcomed public comment. With no comment, Chair Manwaring asked for a motion. 

Councilor Filiault made the following motion, which was seconded by Councilor Lamoureux. 

On a vote of 5-0, the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee accepts the Department
Presentation on Leak Detection as informational.



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 23, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee

ITEM: D.3.

SUBJECT:Report Out – Discussion Regarding a Proposed Ordinance for Disorderly Residences

RECOMMENDATION:
On a vote of 5-0, Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommends that the Discussion
Regarding a Proposed Ordinance for Disorderly Residences be reported out of the Committee with no further
action.

BACKGROUND:
Chair Manwaring recognized the City Manager, Elizabeth Dragon. The City Manager stated that the Committee
asked for an update on all of the more time items. The proposed Ordinace for Disorderly Residences was put
on more time because there was more work that was being done. She said some of the challenges they faced
when looking at implementing the Ordinance had to do with tracking and having a system in place in order to
track. In addition, there were some concerns and questions about the legality of enforcement in relation to a
Disorderly Residence Ordinance. The City Manager stated this year the Legislature had taken up a bill but this
did not make it through the House and Senate. She stated based on that information, she spoke with Mayor
Lane and he would like to see this verbally reported out. The City Manager stated that if something should
change with the Legislature, a new item will then be added to the Committee’s agenda. 

Councilor Hooper asked if the City Manager was stating that if this has action legislatively, it would then be
brought back before the Commitee. The City Manager replied that they were hoping that the Legislature might
add some more guidance. She added that she is not stating that there cannot be a Disorderly Ordinance but
there are some gray areas that need further clarification. The City Manager stated that if the City decided to go
forward with the Ordinance locally, the City would need to work on tracking the calls of service. Councilor
Sutherland stated that his understanding of this to some degree is there are issues with penalizing an owner of a
property for another persons actions. He stated that this does not seem legal under any construct. 

With no further comment, Chair Manwaring asked for a motion. 

Councilor Hooper made the following motion, which was seconded by Councilor Lamoureux. 

On a vote of 5-0, Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommends that the Discussion
Regarding a Proposed Ordinance for Disorderly Residences be reported out of the Committee with no further
action. 



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 23, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee

ITEM: D.4.

SUBJECT:Report Out - Reconstruction of the City Roadways and the Addition of Sidewalk Construction
to Reconstruction Projects

RECOMMENDATION:
On a vote of 5-0, the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommends that the
reconstruction of the City roadways and the addition of sidewalk construction to reconstruction projects be
reported out of the Committee with no further action.

BACKGROUND:
Chair Manwaring recognized Kurt Blomquist, Public Works Director. Mr. Blomquist stated that this item goes
back to 2013-2014 and this communication was put in by Councilor Duffy and Councilor Richards. He said
what happened at that timeframe was the City was maintaining a list for new sidewalk constructions around the
City and that program list was over 4 million dollars. Mr. Blomquist noted that the City Council had not been
expending any funds toward that list for a number of years. At the same time, large reconstruction projects on
Washington Street and Court Street were taking place and Councilor Duffy and Councilor Richards felt new
sidewalks were not moving along as they should be. Councilor Duffy and Councilor Richards then decided to
speak with this Committee to determine priorities with regard to building new sidewalks. 

Mr. Blomquist stated that in his opinion the Committee can report this item out due to the City Council
adopting the Complete Streets Guidelines. In addition, Mr. Blomquist stated that the City has stepped back
from major street reconstruction to focus more on rehabs and maintenance of existing streets. In addition, Mr.
Blomquist stated that the City Council at the previous CIP cycle, decided to eliminate the new sidewalk list. Mr.
Blomquist stated for the reasons he mentioned he felt that the Committee could report this item out. 

Councilor Sutherland asked if there would be a new sidewalk on Bradford Road. The Public Works Director
replied there would not be a new sidewalk in that neighborhood because no one was interested in having the
sidewalk on their side of street. In addition, the City Council did not want to take property to put in a sidewalk. 

With no further comment, Chair Manwaring asked for a motion. 

Councilor Lamoureux made the following motion, which was seconded by Councilor Filiault. 

On a vote of 5-0, the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommends that the
reconstruction of the City roadways and the addition of sidewalk construction to reconstruction projects be
reported out of the Committee with no further action. 



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 24, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee

ITEM: D.5.

SUBJECT:Acceptance of Donations to Library Renovation Project

RECOMMENDATION:
On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the City Manager be authorized
to do all things necessary to accept donations of $105,514.00 as listed in the April 20, 2018 - May 11, 2018
Cambridge Trust report to be deposited into the Library Renovation Temporarily Restricted City Trust as part
of the Next Chapter Campaign Drive.

BACKGROUND:
Ms. Dita Englund Co-Chair of the Library Capital Campaign addressed the Committee and stated she was
before the Committee to request acceptance of donations in the amount of $105,514.00 as listed in the April 20,
2018 - May 11, 2018 Cambridge Trust report. She stated the Campaign Committee is still seeking donations.
She continued that these donations represent the pledges made over the last three or four year period from
individuals and corporations. These pledges continue to be received in a very timely manner. It is still possible
to make donations to the renovation project. 

Councilor Clark made the following motion which was seconded by Councilor Powers. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the City Manager be authorized
to do all things necessary to accept donations of $105,514.00 as listed in the April 20, 2018 - May 11, 2018
Cambridge Trust report to be deposited into the Library Renovation Temporarily Restricted City Trust as part
of the Next Chapter Campaign Drive. 



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 24, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee

ITEM: D.6.

SUBJECT:Thomas Transportation Parking Space Lease - Airport

RECOMMENDATION:
On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the City Manager be authorized
to do all things necessary to negotiate and execute a land lease for 40 parking spaces at the Dillant-Hopkins
Airport with Thomas Transportation.

BACKGROUND:
Airport Manager Jack Wozmak stated this item is regarding the continued lease of parking spaces to Thomas
Transportation. Historically, Thomas Transportation has rented 80 spaces (for about $6,000 to $7,000 a year),
but it is now reducing that number down to 40 spaces due to change in their needs. Mr. Wozmak noted when
the Town of Swanzey did a reassessment and the value of this property increased, the rent for these spaces also
increased because the tenant is responsible for the taxes. The price for the 40 spaces was re-negotiated and the
tenant will now be paying $6,000 which is essentially an “all in” lease and won’t be affected by real estate taxes
going forward. The current lease expired about three months ago and they have been negotiating with the tenant
to recognize the new assessed value with the Town of Swanzey. In the meantime Thomas Transportation has
been continuing to pay as a hold over tenant. 

Councilor Powers made the following motion which was seconded by Councilor Jacobs. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the City Manager be authorized
to do all things necessary to negotiate and execute a land lease for 40 parking spaces at the Dillant-Hopkins
Airport with Thomas Transportation. 



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 24, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee

ITEM: G.1.

SUBJECT:Options for Main Street Crosswalks and Lighting Changes and Relating to the Acceptance of
LED Street Light Program Rebate and Use of Funds for Downtown Crosswalk and Lighting
Repairs and Improvements (Resolution R-2018-19)

RECOMMENDATION:
On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends this item be put on more time to
allow staff to research other options.

BACKGROUND:
Mr. Blomquist stated staff would like to see the crosswalk improvements completed this construction season
for safety considerations. These crosswalks were installed in 1988 as part of the downtown rehabilitation
project and have seen their share of wear and tear. It is becoming difficult for the Public Works Department to
maintain these crosswalks and they have tried various techniques over the years to keep them going, but there
really isn’t much more than can be done with them. They have become a hazard to the public. 

The first scope option staff has is to complete the “worst of the worst” crosswalks around Central Square, the
crosswalk at the top of Main Street and the crosswalk near Railroad Square. 

The second scope option would include “poor” crosswalks at Church Street, across Main Street just south of
Church Street and at Gilbo Avenue. 

After determining the scope, staff has two surface treatments options for the Council to consider. Regardless of
which scope is chosen, the existing pavers will need to be removed and pavement will need to be installed. The
first treatment option is basic white paint and the other option is stamped asphalt with an acrylic finish. This
treatment is currently in use at the head of the square, Washington Street, Court Street and the crosswalk by the
Colonial Theatre and Bagel Works. This option is an upgrade and does fit into the downtown, which is the
heart of the community and the economic driver, and staff believes it deserves a higher treatment. 

Mr. Lussier referred to the committee’s handout and referenced the two different scope options. Regardless of
which option is chosen the existing bricks will be removed, milling out the material underneath it, re-grading the
base and paving will be added to the existing grade. 

White paint is clearly less expensive. There is an annual contract each May for repainting all pavement markings
downtown and by spring the markings look a little ragged. 

Acrylic is the recommended option as it wears much better and is easy to repair. However, it is more expensive.



Chair Greenwald asked how old the existing stamped crosswalks were. Mr. Blomquist stated they were about
four years old. The Chair stressed the reason for this work is purely for pedestrian safety and it is not to
encourage shopping downtown or renting space downtown. Councilor Clark talked about a black line painted
next to the white surface to give it a 3D effect, which he felt was very effective for drivers. Mr. Lussier in
response stated this is not an approved pavement marking. 

Mayor Lane addressed the Committee and began by thanking the Public Works Department for coming
forward with this item. He agreed the crosswalks at the present time are dangerous and need to be replaced. He
stated if the work was going to be done it should be done for the entire downtown as he felt consistency of the
downtown is important. He added the installation of an acrylic crosswalk on Washington and Court Streets
were experimental. He added the white painted crosswalks don’t last at all and he felt it would be irresponsible
to spend money to paint crosswalks. He urged the committee to consider acrylic crosswalks for the downtown.

Councilor Jacobs stated the committee is being asked to accept a donation from Eversource in the amount of
$100,000 to go towards this project, in that case if the acrylic option was considered the balance would be
$47,200. 

The Manager stated when this proposal first came up she was reluctant to consider it because there was
discussion about a downtown project. However, once the Council decided not to move forward with the
downtown project, staff needed to consider what should be done with this particular maintenance work. The
Manager noted she felt this was maintenance work. Ms. Dragon stated she has been impressed with the
longevity of the acrylic and felt overtime maintaining painted crosswalks is an issue. She also talked about the
issue with doing work in the downtown and the issue that causes to traffic flow. 

The Manager went on to say the rebate from Eversource has been identified as a funding source for this work
with the remaining $47,000 coming from end of the year savings in the Public Works Department. She noted the
funds from Eversource are not a donation, but rather a rebate for an energy saving project completed in the
downtown. 

Councilor Powers asked who will be doing this work. Mr. Lussier stated the work would be contracted out. 

Councilor Filiault stated the problem with acrylic crosswalks is they look great during the daytime but they are
difficult to see at night. He went on to say when it is dark and someone is on the crosswalk it is difficult to see
them, but with the bright white lines it is easier to see pedestrians and felt the reason for crosswalks are for
safety. He felt that staff should be able to touch up the white paint with not too much trouble once a year. 

Councilor Clark asked how much the acrylic white paint would be. Mr. Blomquist noted the acrylic is not paint.
It is instead a certain kind of film material. Councilor Clark reiterated the importance of crosswalks for safety
and what is used should keep safety in mind. 

Chair Greenwald asked staff in the ensuing weeks to research the option of acrylic white as well as some
reflective possibilities for the stamped brick. Councilor Powers asked for staff to look into when the existing
crosswalks were installed. 

Chair Greenwald made the following motion which was seconded by Councilor Jacobs. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends this item be put on more time to
allow staff to research other options. 



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

June 4, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Elizabeth A. Fox, ACM/Human Resources Director

THROUGH:Elizabeth A. Dragon, City Manager

ITEM: H.1.

SUBJECT:Relating to Administrative Departments

RECOMMENDATION:
That the City Council refer Ordinance O-2018-09 to the Finance, Organization, and Personnel Committee. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Ordinance O-2018-09

BACKGROUND:
The recommended FY18/19 operating budget reflects several organizational adjustments including combining
the departments of Planning, Code Enforcement and Health into a new Community Development Department. 
Other changes reflected in the budget document include alignment of Youth Services with the Parks, Recreation
and Facilities Department and Human Services with Finance.  A series of ten amendments to City Code,
Chapter 2 and Chapter 18, are advanced that incorporate these changes contained within the budget into City
Code.  The discussion below is organized considering the interrelationship between the various amendments
proposed. 
 
Amendment #1:  Section 2-111, Function and Powers, replaces the organizational chart in its entirety with an
updated chart which adds to the department structure Community Development and removes Human Services
and Youth Services.   Also incorporated are several other changes that reflect current code, including several
adjustments to committee titles and addition of the College/City Commission, the position of Emergency
Management Director and the role of the assistant city manager/department head  prescribed by City Code.   
 
Amendment #2:  Section 2-262, Administrative Departments, replaces the table detailing administrative services
departments to incorporate the organizational changes advanced related to community development, planning,
health, code enforcement, human services and youth services. 
 
Amendment #3 & 6:  Section 2-326, Functions, aligns human services with finance adding administration of
human services programs as a function of the finance department along with deletion of Section 2-406 to
conform to the relocation of the human services function.
 
Amendment #4 & 8:  Section 2-366, Functions, establishes Community Development as a department detailing
as its function various activities related to planning, health and code enforcement along with deletion of Section



2-486 related to planning that are reflective of the new department’s configuration.  
 
Amendment #5 & 10:  Section 2-367 and 18-26, Administrative amendments to adopted codes, adds Section 2-
367 and amends Section 18-26 to attribute responsibilities assigned by City Code to planning, health and code
enforcement departments and directors to the community development director and other community
development personnel. 
 
Amendment #7 & 9:  Section 2-466, Functions, adds youth programs related to court and criminal justice
diversion and prevention as a function of parks, recreation and facilities and deletes Section 2-546 to align with
relocation of these youth services functions. 
 
With adoption of the amendments proposed and creation of a Community Development Department, City
Code will reflect important actions taken toward implementing a component of the vision of Economic
Development Action Plan adopted by the City Council in the Spring of 2017 and align with the operating
budget for FY 18/19 implementing this new department and other adjustments reflecting current management
structure incorporated into the Class and Allocation Schedule effective July 1, 2018. 
 





City of Keene 

Organizational Chart 

Mayor and  

City Council 

City Manager 

 

Conservation 

Commission 

Airport 

Development 

and Marketing 

Committee 

 

Zoning Board 

of Adjustment 

 

Planning 

Board 

 

Board of  

Assessors 

 

Juvenile  

Conference 

Committee 

 

Library Board 

of Trustees 

 

Trustees of 

Trust Funds 

 

Partner City 

Committee 

 

Ashuelot River 

Park Advisory 

Board 

 

Building  

Board of  

Appeal 

Martin Luther 

King/Jonathan 

Daniels  

Committee 

 

Historic  

District 

Commission 

Bicycle/ 

Pedestrian 

Path Advisory 

Committee 

 

Housing  

Authority 

 

Energy and 

Climate  

Committee 

Emergency Management 

Director 

City Treasurer City Clerk 

Assessment Finance 
Human  

Resources 

Information 

Technology 

Parks,  

Recreation 

& Facilities 

Police 

 

Agricultural 

Commission 

 

 

Heritage  

Commission 

 

College/City 

Commission 

City Attorney 

Housing 

Standards 

Board of  

Appeal 

Community Services 

Assistant City Manager 

Library Fire Airport 
Community 

Development 

Public 

Works 

Administrative Services 

Assistant City Manager 

Municipal Development Services 

Assistant City Manager 

Amendment  #1 



 

Amendment #2 

Sec. 2-262. – Administrative Departments 
 
 In addition to others created in the future by the city council, the city’s administrative 
service shall consist of the following departments, and the department heads shall be known by 
the title shown: 

 Department Department Head 

(1) Airport Airport director 

(2) Assessment City assessor 

(3) Community development Community development director 

(4) Finance Finance director 

(5) Fire Fire chief 

(6) Human resources Human resources director 

(7) Information technology Information technology director 

(8) Library Library director* 

(9) Parks, recreation and facilities Parks, recreation and facilities director 

(10) Police Police chief 

(11) Public works Public works director 

 

*This designation to be subject to the Thayer Agreement. 

 
 



 
Amendment #3 

Sec. 2-326. - Functions.  

The major functions of the finance department are to:  

(1)  Develop and maintain a citywide accounting and budgeting system.  

(2)  Develop and maintain a citywide central purchasing system.  

(3)  Provide general revenue collection operations.  

(4)  Develop and maintain a citywide payroll system.  

(5)  Audit departmental accounts as appropriate and see to the independent audit each year 
of the city's books of the immediately preceding fiscal year.  

(6)  Carry out and/or oversee all city financial transactions.  

(7)  Assist the trustees of trust funds and city treasurer in the investment of city funds.  

(8)  Administer human services programs, as prescribed by state law, to provide for 
those in need of assistance in basic life needs while aiding residents with long 
term solutions for returning to a state of financial self-sufficiency.     

 

Amendment #4 

 

DIVISION 6. - HEALTH AND CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

Sec. 2-366. - Functions.  

The major functions of the health and code enforcement community development 
department are to:  

(1)  Protect and promote public health and safety.  

(2)  Conduct a food service sanitation program.  

(3)  Inspect day care settings.  
(4)  Investigate complaints of unsanitary conditions or environmental pollutants.  

(5)    Provide advice on public health issues and enforce state and local health laws and 
rules.  

(6)   Determine compliance with construction and building codes and Aadminister the 
plan review and inspection program.  

(7)   Assist applicants while also enforcing building codes, Enforce zoning, floodplain 
and sign ordinances as well as site plan, subdivision regulations.  



(8)   Determine compliance with construction and building codes. Provide technical and 
administrative support for the planning board and the zoning board of 
adjustment.  

(9)  Provide the public with information on codes and development processes and 
leadership, guidance and technical information for the city master plan. 

(10)    Coordinate the subdivision, site plan review and driveway permit processes with 
the planning board. 

(11)    Assist with the development of the capital improvement program. 

(12)    Make recommendations relative to zoning amendments and road and utility 
layouts. 

(13)   Gather, organize and record data and information relative to the various physical 
aspects of    the community in order to provide the services in subsections (1) 
through (5) of this section in a coherent manner. 

 

 

Amendment  #5 

 

Sec.2-367- Administrative amendments to adopted codes 

(1)  Whenever “health department” or “code enforcement department” or “planning   
department” appears in the code it shall read “community development 
department”. 

(2) Whenever "planning director" appears in the code, it shall be read "community 
development director". 

(3)     Whenever "health director, superintendent of code enforcement, building 
official, code official , zoning administrator" or “code administrator “appears in 
the code, it shall read "building/health official". 



 

Amendment #6 

 

DIVISION 8. - HUMAN SERVICES  

Sec. 2-406. - Functions.  

The major function of the human services department, in accordance with state law, is to 
administer a program to provide for those in need of assistance in basic life needs.  

 

Amendment #7 

Sec. 2-466. - Functions.  

The major functions of the parks, recreation and facilities department are to:  

(1)  Provide, maintain and operate recreational facilities.  

(2)  Provide recreational programs.  

(3)  Facilitate the provision of public leisure activities through clubs, associations, and 
service organizations.  

(4)  Provide adequate cemetery facilities and burial services.  
(5)  Maintain safe and functional municipal and departmental buildings.  

(6)  Provide, through various programs, methods for diverting youth from the court 
and criminal justice system while holding youth accountable for their actions, 
support prevention through community collaboration and create positive 
opportunities for youth interactions within the community.   

 

Amendment #8 

 

DIVISION 12. - PLANNING    

Sec. 2-486. - Functions.  

The major functions of the planning department are to:  

(1)  Provide leadership, guidance and technical information in the city master plan 
development and updating.  

(2)  Serve as secretary for the planning board and provide technical and administrative 
support.  



(3)  Assist with the development of the capital improvement program.  

(4)  Coordinate the subdivision, site plan review and driveway permit processes with the 
planning board.  

(5)  Make recommendations relative to zoning amendments and road and utility layouts.  

(6)  Gather, organize and record data and information relative to the various physical 
aspects of the community in order to provide the services in subsections (1) through (5) 
of this section in a coherent manner.  

(7)  Assist applicants in various permit processes such as wetlands, excavation and 
floodplain permits.  

Amendment #9 

 

DIVISION 15. - YOUTH SERVICES  

Sec. 2-546. - Functions.  

The major function of the youth services department is to provide, through various 
programs, methods for diverting youth from the court and the criminal justice system as well as 
provide a means by which juveniles may provide restitution for their offenses.  
 

Amendment #10 

Sec. 18-26. - Administrative amendments to adopted codes.  

The following sections apply to the administrative sections of the State Building Code 
adopted pursuant to state law.  

(1)  Whenever "building official" or "code official" appears in the codes, it shall be read 
"building/health official assistant city manager/health director."  

(2)  Whenever "department of building safety" appears in the codes, it shall read 
"community development code enforcement department."  

(3)  Nothing contained in this section shall be interpreted or construed to allow any work 
for which a permit is not required herein to be done in any manner contrary to the 
requirements of the codes and laws of the city. Violations of the codes or other laws in 
any work not requiring a permit shall be subject to the general penalty of the codes in 
the same manner as if a permit had been required.  

 

     ________________________________________ 

     Kendall W. Lane, Mayor 



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 24, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee

ITEM: I.1.

SUBJECT:Relating to Class Allocation and Salary Schedule

RECOMMENDATION:
On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of Ordinance O-
2018-08-A. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Ordinance O-2018-08-A

BACKGROUND:
Asst. City Manager/HR Director Beth Fox stated she was before the Committee regarding the annual update
for class allocation to sections of Chapter 62 – Class Allocation and Salary Schedule related to charter officers,
and schedules for probationary highway and firefighters, and administrative and clerical positions, which are not
subject to a collective bargaining agreement. This update however does not pertain to Section 62-192,
probationary police officers because this salary scale was only recently updated as part of the hiring incentive
program. 

The Human Resources Director continued this ordinance includes changes to Chapter 62 that anticipate
organizational changes recommended in the operating budget. In particular, changes are being recommended to
the Planning, and Health and Code Enforcement Departments, which are proposed to be combined into a single
Community Development Department. In addition, alignment of assignments of Human and Youth Services to
the Finance Director and the Parks, Recreation, and Facilities Director are proposed. Staff is currently finalizing
additional adjustments to Chapter 2 related to department and organizational structures to complete
implementation of the organizational changes reflected in the FY19 budget. These further changes will be
incorporated into an Ordinance that will be submitted to the Council on June 7. 

The schedules before the committee tonight reflect a cost of living adjustment of 2.25%, providing wage
adjustments that fall within the parameters set by the City’s collective bargaining agreements which range from
2% to 3%. Ms. Fox noted the Northeast Urban Consumer Price index as of April 2018 reflects an annual rate
of 2.1%. 

Ms. Fox reiterated these schedules are the wage structure for the City’s non-union regular full and part time
employees, which consist of about 90, of the City’s 285 regular full and part time positions. The proposed
COLA is for a five year period of non-union wage adjustments which have averaged less than 2%. The
proposal before the committee tonight at 2.25%, is recommended to maintain a competitive non-union wage



schedule in an increasing competitive labor market. As stated before, competitive wages are one component that
helps to attract and retain high performing employees that provide the services that the community needs and
expects. 

Ms. Fox went on to say the bulk of the changes relate to the City’s 4th floor shifting from two departments to a
combined Community Development Department. The ordinance before the committee deletes four positions;
Planning Director, Health Director, Code Enforcement Superintendent and Code Enforcement & Inspections
Manager and adds the positions of a Community Development Director, a Building/Health Official and a Senior
Planner.
 
A second area of change which is also reflected in the operating budget is the deletion of the position of Human
Services/Youth Services Director. This position has been vacant for more than five years. These functions will
now be assigned to the Finance Department and Parks, Recreation and Facilities Department, respectively.
 
There is a grade reclassification for the Parks, Recreation, and Facilities Director because of the added
expectations and responsibilities of this position relating to facilities and the growing importance of this service
area and how it contributes to the community vibrancy.
 
Other ordinance adjustments relate to finance operations; restructuring of work flow and staff resources within
the department. The specific changes are reflected in the elimination of the purchasing specialist position and the
inclusion of a staff accountant position which will work in conjunction with the senior staff accountant on the
budget efforts, supporting grants, Trustees of Trust fund operations and the reconciliation process.
 
The final adjustment is the addition of a step 30 which currently has no positions in it, but for the schedule to
work effectively there needs to be a step 30.
 
Councilor Powers referenced the police probationary scale adjustment not being included in this ordinance. The
HR Director responded when she developed the recent ordinance change she was using a July 1st 2.25%
percent increase. In this instance the scale was not included, but in a normal circumstance a cola adjustment
ordinance would include the probationary police scale.
 
Councilor Powers inquired whether the senior planner in S19 would replace the planner in S16. Ms. Fox stated
there will be another planner, but the senior planner would have supervisory responsibilities over the planner and
the planning technician.
 
Ms. Fox indicated there was a Scribner’s error in the ordinance that she would like to have addressed by the
committee. She noted that she had included a reference to Sec. 62-192 in the preamble of the ordinance as
being a section to be deleted. This was in error and she was requesting an amendment to the ordinance to
remove the reference to Sec. 62-192 in the instructions to the codifier.
 
Councilor Jacobs made the following motion which was seconded by Councilor Powers. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the correction of a Scribner’s
error as proposed by the Human Resources Director to the Ordinance. 

Councilor Jacobs made the following motion which was seconded by Councilor Powers. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the 
adoption of Ordinance O-2018-08-A.















City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 23, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee

ITEM: J.1.

SUBJECT:Relating to the Absolute Discontinuance of a Public Way Known as Wells Street Parking Lot
and For the Return of Layout of a Public Right-of-Way Known as Wells Street

RECOMMENDATION:
On a vote of 4-0, the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommends the adoption of
Resolution R-2018-12. 

On a vote of 4-0, the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommends the adoption of
Resolution R-2018-13. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Resolution R-2018-12

Resolution R-2018-13

BACKGROUND:
Chair Manwaring stated that she was not present at the site visit for Wells Street parking lot and layout of public
right of way. Chair Manwaring turned the meeting over to Councilor Filiault. Chair Pro Tem Filiault recognized
Kurt Blomquist, Public Works Director. 

Mr. Blomquist displayed a layout of the Wells Street Parking Lot. He stated that the process is both code
related and statutory. He noted that both of these Resolutions did receive first reading and that City Council has
done a site visit for the return of layout. 

Mr. Blomquist stated that back in the early 1970’s the City was working with a number of organizations with
regard to the construction of an elderly housing complex, known as the Cleveland Building. He said this was an
area that there were a number of different properties. The City did go through and acquire these properties
through friendly processes and through eminent domain. Mr. Blomquist stated that the City did take these
buildings down in order to facilitate construction for the building. In 1976, the City discontinued Church Street
from where it ends today. In addition, they laid out what is known as the Roxbury Plaza and this property
provided the frontage for the Cleveland Building. At the same time, the City decided that it was going to layout
an area to be used for public parking. Wells Street was discontinued to make this happen. 

Today, Mr. Blomquist stated that the City is interested in doing long term leases on the ground level in the Wells
Street facility. He noted that long term leases have been done on the second floor of the parking structure. Mr.
Blomquist said when that occurred in late 1998, the City Attorney at that time, looked at it and said that it was



not an issue. Mr. Blomquist stated that this was not an issue because the second deck is in the air. 

Mr. Blomquist stated due to the interest in ground space today, we run into the issue of long term leasing of the
public way. He said to resolve this issue the City must reverse the action of the City Council back in 1976. 

Councilor Sutherland commented that he was concerned at what point does public parking facility no longer
become public if it is not accessible to the public. He asked if the City would consider selling the parking
garage. Mr. Blomquist stated that the City Council would be learning more about parking on June 19th at their
meeting. He continued that from his perspective the City never gives up property because of what could happen
in the future. 

Chair Pro Tem Filiault welcomed public comment. With no commment, Chair Pro Tem Filiault asked for a
motion. 

Councilor Sutherland made the following motion, which was seconded by Councilor Lamoureux. 

On a vote of 4-0, the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommends the adoption of
Resolution R-2018-12. 

Councilor Sutherland made the following motion, which was seconded by Councilor Lamoureux. 

On a vote of 4-0, the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommends the adoption of
Resolution R-2018-13. 



hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
In City Council April 5, 2018.Referred to the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee and the Planning Board.  Site visit scheduled for Thursday, May 17, 2018 at 5:45 PM.   Public Hearing scheduled for Thursday, May 17, 2018 at 7:00 PM. 

hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
City Clerk



hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
In City Council April 5, 2018.Referred to the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee and the Planning Board.  Site visit scheduled for Thursday, May 17, 2018 at 5:45 PM.   Public Hearing scheduled for Thursday, May 17, 2018 at 7:00 PM.

hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
City Clerk



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 24, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee

ITEM: J.2.

SUBJECT:Relating to an Appropriation for Lower Main Street Crosswalk Improvement Project

RECOMMENDATION:
On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of Resolution R-
2018-18, Relating to an Appropriation for Lower Main Street Crosswalk Improvement Project.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Resolution R-2018-18

BACKGROUND:
Public Works Director, Kurt Blomquist and City Engineer Don Lussier were the next two presenters. The City
Manager noted this evening the Committee would be considering the Resolution relating to an appropriation for
the lower Main Street crosswalk improvements, and at their next meeting the acceptance of a donation from
Keene State College would be addressed. She explained the Finance Director asked that this be addressed as
two separate items once there was confirmation from the College that they are going to donate the $120,000. If
the Council supports the recommended motion, a letter would be sent to KSC requesting the funds. Once the
$120,000 is received, the staff would be back before the committee for the acceptance of the donation. She
added the design of the lower Main Street crosswalk project is going to be addressed by the MSFI Committee.

Mr. Blomquist stated the portion of the City being addressed is Lower Main Street near Elliot Street where
crosswalk work was recently completed. This project is outlined in the CIP at a cost of $240,000. After recent
discussions with the college, they have expressed interest in funding some of the improvements with a
contribution of $120,000. 

Mr. Lussier stated the work will build on what already exists – raised medians from the Westwood Center north
to just pass Elliot Street. There will be a cross over for emergency vehicles to access Elliot Street. The project
will also include decorative lighting and pedestrian activated push button signals similar to what exists on West
Street and Roxbury Street. The curb line will be extended out for better visibility for both pedestrians and
motorists. There will be two crosswalks – one at Elliot Street and one at the Westwood Center. 

Councilor Powers clarified this work would happen within the existing right of way. Mr. Lussier stated all the
work - including two lanes north and two lanes south and a four foot median - will be within the right-of-way. 

Councilor Clark asked whether staff has looked at which crosswalk locations pedestrians use the most. Mr.
Lussier stated this type of survey has not been done yet and will be looked at as part of the design. 



The City Manager stated the reason this item is coming this evening is because it is part of the CIP and the
Mayor had asked the City to contact KSC to see if they would like to move forward with this work. She added
the City is in a time crunch with reference to this matter as the College would like to complete this work by the
fall. 

Councilor Clark made the following motion which was seconded by Councilor Powers. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of Resolution R-
2018-18, Relating to an Appropriation for Lower Main Street Crosswalk Improvement Project. 



hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
In City Council  May 17, 2018.Referred to the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee.

hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
Deputy City Clerk



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 24, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee

ITEM: J.3.

SUBJECT:Relating to the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Operating Budget

RECOMMENDATION:
On a vote of 4 – 0, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of
Resolution R-2018-17-A.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Summary of amendments

Resolution R-2018-17-A

BACKGROUND:
Chair Greenwald noted the public has had the opportunity to comment on the budget. This conversation is
open for comment from Councilors until a motion is made and then the discussion is then only open to the
Finance Committee. At the next Council meeting, all Councilors will be permitted to make additional
amendments. 

The City Manager referenced a handout which she had distributed to the Committee. It contained the following
proposed amendments: 

1. Health insurance – this amendment will adjust the budget by $209,448 which is a decrease throughout the
budget. 

2. An increase of $25,000 for the contribution of an economic development initiative which is related to the
downtown coordinator position. 

3. A decrease of $10,000 for the pumpkin festival activities. 

4. The closure of the Wheelock Park campground. 

These changes would adjust the original increase to the budget which was $361,855 or 1.45% to $174,627 or a
.7% change 

Councilor Clark addressed the Committee and stated in 2004 the Cities for Climate Protection Committee
(CCP) recommended the City establish an energy efficiency environmental coordinator position to implement



the Climate Action Plans. In 2007, the CCP recommended that in order for the City to successfully establish a
climate action plan the City create a sustainability coordinator position. While this was happening, the City
committed to reduce its greenhouse gas emission as a municipality. There was success by the City, but the goal
fell short at a community scale. 

The Councilor felt the Sustainability Coordinator can bring the community together on this effort. He felt the
City as a municipality is able to do this and felt the rest of the community should be educated as well. 

Councilor Richards added if this position is funded, a position like this could look at other savings as well. This
would be similar to how the city and school and county have been working on fuel savings. He noted this is a
contract position and felt its addition could save the City much more than $40,000. He added this position is
mentioned twice in the master plan and is a position recommended by the CCP. He stated he looks at this
position as a return on investment. 

Councilor Hansel was the next to address the committee. He stated he wanted to address the public/private
partnership for the downtown coordinator position. He stated this is not a City position. MEDC will handle all
the administrative costs for this position. Every tax dollar invested in this initiative is being matched by a private
entity. There are also grant sources being looked at by MEDC. The Councilor added the City Manager and
Council will have a lot of say in what this position does. He further stated the fundraising efforts are ongoing for
matching funds for this position and it is important for the City to move it forward. 

Councilor Hansel stated the City has had long time collaboration with MEDC and they are looking for a partner
to drive this process. He sees value in the City investing in this idea. He went on to say by appropriating this
money right now what the City is saying is that it is interested in investing in the downtown. The Council will
have a say in how the money is going to be used and that the City has a significant leadership role in this
instance. 

Ms. Dragon referred to a recent discussion she had had regarding the sustainability coordinator position and
agreed the City has done a good job in trying to reduce greenhouse gas emission and there are also some
projects on the horizon the City is looking at. She noted if this is a position the Council was considering it
would be an outward focused position because the City currently has staff to continue on the path of
sustainability. 

The Manager further stated she was concerned at the public hearing because the comments about the position
were confusing but Councilor Clark has indicated tonight that this would be outwardly focused position and
this is what the recent discussion focused on. 

Councilor Richards asked whether the $5,000 for the pumpkin festival came from the Finance Committee or
through protocol meetings. Ms. Dragon stated it came through the Finance Committee. 

Chair Greenwald made the following motion which was seconded by Councilor Jacobs. 

That the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of Resolution R-2018-17,
relating to the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Operating Budget. 

Councilor Clark made the following motion, which was seconded by Councilor Jacobs: 

Move to add $40,000 to cost center 00300 to fund a contract for a sustainability manager. 

Councilor Clark stated this community is not reaching its goals and there has to be someone who is able to lead
this work. He felt this is an important issue for the taxpayer. He stated someone has to start thinking about the
“entirety” and he felt Keene should step forward and take on this task. He noted a Councilor suggested an



intern, but stated the committee that suggested this position was reluctant on giving such a task to an intern and
felt a point person was necessary. 

Councilor Powers stated the department heads brought forward a budget which was solid and within the
guidelines set forth by the Council. On this topic and others which might need funds added to the budget, he
will have to vote no. He stated if anything more is going to be added to the budget it will have to be for things
like roads, the opioid crisis, homelessness, unemployment, things of that nature. If this item was discussed six
months ago and the committee had time to discuss it, he might have voted in favor. 

Councilor Jacobs stated he will vote in favor of a sustainability coordinator because he was asked to sign the
original letter. He stated he understands that this is an outward position. The City has air quality issues that need
to be addressed and he felt it is a public health issue and a person addressing these concerns was necessary. He
noted it was a small investment; it has a time limit as it is a contract position and the City always has the
opportunity to evaluate if the position works. 

Chair Greenwald stated he is all for the idea of sustainability. He suggested a collaborative effort between the
city, school district, university system, chamber of commerce, southwest regional planning, all working together
would be worthwhile, but he did not feel an employee was needed to corral these entities together. He noted the
City was not responsible for the school district, but the City was doing its part with respect to sustainability.
The Chairman felt a quarterly report from department heads as to what they are doing to further this initiative
was prudent. He did not feel any more money needs to be allocated to fund a position which will only keep
increasing in costs. The Chairman stated he will not be supporting a sustainability coordinator’s position. 

On a vote of 2 – 2, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee failed to recommend a motion to add
$40,000 to cost center 00300 to fund a contract for a sustainability manager. Chair Greenwald and Councilor
Powers voting in opposition. 

Referring to the recommendation from the City Manager to adjust the health insurance budgets (61701) and
associated funding sources; Councilor Powers noted the good work that was done by many to obtain a good
health insurance policy. 

Councilor Powers made the following motion, which was seconded by Councilor Jacobs: 

On a vote of 4 – 0, the Finance Organization and Personnel Committee recommends a decrease in the general
fund of $209,448 to reflect a change in health insurance coverage for City employees.
 
Again referring to a recommendation of the City Manager regarding an economic development initiative,
Councilor Powers made the following motion, which was seconded by Councilor Greenwald:
 
The Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the addition of $25,000 to fund a
contribution towards an economic development coordinator.
 
Councilor Clark noted this was a position that was originally funded through the Chamber of Commerce over
the years of 2008-2011. He questioned the sustainability of the funding source, especially because the
downtown merchants association is not a formal group and can’t make a formal contract. He asked what
happens if the match is not made and questioned whether the City should get involved in a non-guaranteed
funding source. The Councilor felt this might be a position that would only last for a year or two and
questioned how beneficial something like that could be.
 
Chair Greenwald stated if this position is connected with MEDC, this is a solid organization that has been
around and they are fundraising with bigger corporate entities that see the value of downtown and the
importance of this position. Councilor Clark asked what happens if the $25,000 match is not reached?



 
The Manager stated one of the strengths of this recommendation  is that it is a public/private partnership and it
is not all on the City. This type of effort will involve a variety of people and organizations.  As stated by
Councilor Hansel, work will need to be done to be certain that the scope of the job meets our needs. She stated
her understanding is that fundraising would be required for the first two years so the position has two solid
years.  The Manager continued the other issue is there are organizations which are already pursuing the course
just described by Councilor Clark with small individual donations from downtown businesses. There is a
person already in the role who does not know if they will be able to continue from month to month.  It is tough
to get any momentum and develop long term relationships in programs such as this.
 
The Manager continued she supported this proposal from Councilor Hansel because she is aware that the City
Council is very interested in economic development and redevelopment and it was a big part of the Economic
Development Action Plan.  In her opinion, this position really furthers that in a partnership with the private
sector.  In addition MEDC has a longstanding reputation with the City in being able to raise funds and being
able to put together difficult projects. They are a 501C 3 and are able to raise funds separately from the
government.  The Manager agreed if they are not successful after two years, they might be back before the
Council to re-evaluate the position to see if this is the best model or not and noted she has seen other models
presented in the last eight months.
 
The Chairman stated he wanted it to be clear that no check will be written until a job description and a statement
of goals is written. Councilor Jacobs stated he would also like to see the $25,000 from the partnership in place.
 
On a vote of 2 – 2, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee failed to recommend an addition of
$25,000 to fund a contribution towards an economic development coordinator.  Councilor Powers and Clark
voted in opposition.
 
Referring to another recommendation from the City Manager, Councilor Powers made the following motion,
which was seconded by Councilor Jacobs:
 
Move to decrease the supplemental appropriation for the Pumpkin Festival by $10,000.
 
Councilor Clark stated the City previously spent a great deal of money on the Pumpkin Festival in the past.  He
noted the music festival cost the City less than $800, the film festival cost the City less than $300 and many
other events don’t cost the City anything.  The Councilor asked what is it about this event that is costing the
City so much money.  Councilor Powers stated this is because the downtown is getting shutdown which
requires City staff involvement.
 
On a vote of 4 – 0, The Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the pumpkin festival
supplemental appropriation be reduced by $10,000.
 
Referring to the City Manager’s recommendation to adjust the Parks and Recreation budget to reflect the
closing of the Wheelock Park campground, Councilor Powers made the following motion, which was
seconded by Councilor Jacobs:
 
On a vote of 4 – 0, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends campground revenue be
reduced by $20,000 and expenditures be reduced $12,780 resulting in a $7,220 increase in the use of property
taxes for the operation of Wheelock Park campground.
 
 
Chair Greenwald made a motion to allocate $2,500 to an outside agency. The NH Kids Collaborative. The
motion was seconded by Councilor Clark.
 



Chair Greenwald stated the presentation made by this agency’s representative did not communicate very clearly
the benefits of this organization. He explained the group of children helped by this organization is an identified
population of kids mainly from  Keene Housing Authority properties – Studies have shown when these kids are
introduced to organizations such as MoCo Arts or the Recreation Center that that experience  enriches them
and their families and it breaks the cycle of poverty, gets them out of the unemployment world and the
subsidized world and gives them a real leg up.
 
Councilor Powers confirmed that the NH Kids Collaborative is an existing outside agency that followed the
process, but the internal staff review did not support funding. 
 
Councilor Greenwald noted the Committee was not furnished the “whys” of the denial, but he recalls that it was
perceived that this might be a duplication of services.
 
Councilor Jacobs stated it was noted when the presentation was made that the services this agency provides is
something the City is already providing through the Parks and Recreation Department.  Chair Greenwald stated
the rationale is that the funding is being provided so the kids could be enrolled in programs with Parks and Rec
or MoCo Arts.
 
Councilor Powers stated the numbers involved far exceed what Parks and Rec could accommodate and by
receiving the funding these children can be enrolled in other programs.
 
On a vote of 3 – 1, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends funding the NH Kids
Collaborative at $2,500.  Councilor Jacobs voted in opposition.
 
Councilor Greenwald made the following motion which was seconded by Councilor Jacobs.
 
On a vote of 4 – 0, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of
Resolution R-2018-17-A.



Summary of FY 2018-2019 Proposed Operating Budget - FOP Amendments

1. Health Insurance Reduction Due to Change of Carrier (various cost centers)
       General Fund (209,448)     
       Parking Fund (1,543)         
       Solid Waste Fund 4,415          
       Sewer Fund (17,443)       
       Water Fund (15,944)       
       Fleet Fund (11,922)       

Total Reduction in Health Insurance Budget (251,885)     

2. Pumpkin Festival Reduction in City Funded Support (10,000)       

3. Campground Closure - Increase in Property Tax 7,220          

Net Expenditure Budget Decrease          12,780
Campground Revenue Decrease          (20, 000)
Property Tax Increase                               7,220

4. NH Kids Collaborative - Outside Agencies 2,500          

Summary of FY 2018-2019 Property Tax Change - FOP Amendments

Increase in taxes to Fund Operations as Published 361,855      1.45%
Decrease in Health Insurance - General Fund (209,448)     -0.84%
Decrrease in taxes to fund Pumpkin Festival (10,000)       -0.04%
Increase in taxes to offset loss of campground revenue 7,220          0.03%
Increase in taxes to fund NH Kids Collaborative 2,500          0.01%

Increase in taxes to fund operations as amended by FOP 152,127      0.61%







City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

May 24, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee

ITEM: J.4.

SUBJECT:Relating to the Appropriation of Funds for the Goose Pond Dam Improvement Projects;
Relating to the Appropriation of Funds for the Winchester Street By-Pass Project; Relating to
the Appropriation of Funds for the Consolidated Infrastructure Project; Relating to the
Appropriation of Funds for the Martell Court Headworks Replacement Project

RECOMMENDATION:
On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of R-2018-08,
Appropriation of funds for Goose Pond Damn improvements project. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of R-2018-09,
Appropriation of funds for the Winchester Street Bypass Project. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of R-2018-10,
Appropriation of funds for the consolidated infrastructure project. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of R-2018-11,
Appropriation of funds for the Martell Court Headworks Replacement Project. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Resolution R-2018-08

Resolution R-2018-09

Resolutoin R-2018-10

Resolution R-2018-11

BACKGROUND:
The Finance Director stated these are bond resolutions that provide the City with authorization to issue bonds
for capital projects included in the CIP adopted by the Council. The Finance Director identified each
Resolution’s funding level and its purpose. 

R-2018-08 would appropriate funds for Goose Pond Damn improvements in the amount of $885,000. R-2018-
09 would appropriate funds for the Winchester Street Bypass project in the amount of $610,000. R-2018-10
would appropriate funds for the consolidated infrastructure project in the amount of $1,271,000 and R-2018-11
would appropriate funds for the Martell Court Headworks Replacement project in the amount of $1,350,000. 



Councilor Clark made the following motion which was seconded by Councilor Powers. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of R-2018-08,
Appropriation of funds for Goose Pond Damn improvements project. 

Councilor Powers made the following motion which was seconded by Councilor Jacobs. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of R-2018-09,
Appropriation of funds for the Winchester Street Bypass Project. 

Councilor Jacobs made the following motion which was seconded by Councilor Powers. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of R-2018-10,
Appropriation of funds for the consolidated infrastructure project. 

Councilor Clark made the following motion which was seconded by Councilor Powers. 

On 4-0 vote, the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommends the adoption of R-2018-11,
Appropriation of funds for the Martell Court Headworks Replacement Project. 



hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
In City Council May 17, 2018.Referred to the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee.

hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
Deputy City Clerk



hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
In City Council May 18, 2018.Referred to the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee.

hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
Deputy City Clerk



hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
In City Council May 17, 2018.Referred to the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee.

hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
Deputy City Clerk



hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
In City Council May 17, 2018.Referred to the Finance, Organizationand Personnel Committee.

hfitz-simon
Typewritten Text
Deputy City Clerk


	Meeting Agenda
	05/17/2018 - Site Visit
	05/17/2018 - Minutes
	Confirmation
	Nominations
	Darryl Masterson - Resignation - College City Commission
	Rod Thompson - Resignation - Airport Development and Marketing Committee
	Carolyn Sweet/Machina Arts - Use of City Property - First Friday Events
	Kevin Dremel - Use of City Property - Keene Music Festival
	Peggy Schauffler/Country Life - Use of City Property - Sandwich Board Sign
	Anthony & Fanella Levick/Granite Roots Brewing - Request to Sell Beer at Farmer's Market
	Councilor Terry Clark - Proposed Amendment to Operating Budget - Sustainability Manager
	Councilor George Hansel - Proposed Amendment to Operating Budget - Economic Development Coordinator
	Councilor Randy Filiault - Proposed Amendment to Operating Budget - Hundred Nights Shelter
	Skate Park Location-Parks, Recreation and Facilities Director
	Department Presentation-Water Meters Leak Detection
	Report Out – Discussion Regarding a Proposed Ordinance for Disorderly Residences
	Report Out - Reconstruction of the City Roadways and the Addition of Sidewalk Construction to Reconstruction Projects
	Acceptance of Donations to Library Renovation Project
	Thomas Transportation Parking Space Lease - Airport
	Options for Main Street Crosswalks and Lighting Changes and Relating to the Acceptance of LED Street Light Program Rebate and Use of Funds for Downtown Crosswalk and Lighting Repairs and Improvements (Resolution R-2018-19)
	Relating to Administrative Departments
	Relating to Class Allocation and Salary Schedule
	Relating to the Absolute Discontinuance of a Public Way Known as Wells Street Parking Lot and For the Return of Layout of a Public Right-of-Way Known as Wells Street
	Relating to an Appropriation for Lower Main Street Crosswalk Improvement Project
	Relating to the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Operating Budget
	Relating to the Appropriation of Funds for the Goose Pond Dam Improvement Projects; Relating to the Appropriation of Funds for the Winchester Street By-Pass Project; Relating to the Appropriation of Funds for the Consolidated Infrastructure Project; Relating to the Appropriation of Funds for the Martell Court Headworks Replacement Project

